Special Highways Committee

Date
Time
Venue

Thursday 12 September 2019
1.00 pm.
Council Chamber - County Hall, Durham
Business
Part A

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Substitute Members

3.

Declarations of Interest, if any

4.

Providence Row, Durham City - Off Street Parking Places &
Parking Charges - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration
and Local Services (Pages 3 - 18)

5.

Green Lane, Gilesgate - Parking & Waiting Restrictions Order
2019 - Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local
Services (Pages 19 - 30)

6.

Shotley Bridge - Parking & Waiting Restrictions Order 2019 Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services
(Pages 31 - 44)

7.

Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
County Hall
Durham
4 September 2019

To:

The Members of the Highways Committee
Councillor C Kay (Chair)
Councillor S Morrison (Vice-Chair)
Councillors D Bell, H Bennett, G Bleasdale, J Chaplow,
J Considine, S Dunn, D Hicks, K Hopper, S Hugill, K Liddell,
O Milburn, R Ormerod, J Rowlandson, P Sexton,
J Shuttleworth, A Simpson, K Thompson, J Turnbull and
M Wilson

Contact:

Michael Turnbull

Tel: 03000 269 714

Highways Committee

Agenda Item 4

12 September 2019
Providence Row, Durham City– Off
Street Parking Places & Parking
Charges ORDER 2019

Report of Corporate Management Team
Ian Thompson Corporate Director of Regeneration and Economic
Development.
Councillor Carl Marshall, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Regeneration
and Economic Development.

Electoral division(s) affected:
Elvet and Gilesgate.

1. Purpose of the Report
1.1

1.2

1.3

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to
make a decision in principle only which will then guide the Corporate
Director in the exercise of delegated decision making. The final
decision is therefore one for the Corporate Director, under delegated
powers.
To advise Members of objections received to the consultation
concerning changes to the traffic regulation order in Elvet and
Gilesgate.
To request that members consider the objections made during the
informal and formal consultation period.

2. Executive summary
2.1

Within Civil parking Enforcement operational guidance, the
County Council are committed to regularly reviewing traffic
regulation orders to ensure that the restrictions held within them
are relevant and appropriate.

2.2

The County Council are proposing to amend restrictions on:

2.3

Providence Row:
To amend a Section (approx.10 bays) of ‘Pay and Display Parking’ to
Introduce ‘Market Traders Permit Holders Only Parking Saturday from

Page 3

6am-10am’ on Providence Row, Durham. Traders will need a valid
permit from the Market Manager and will also be required to pay and
display.
Due to comments made by current traders there are also bay
suspensions being put in place for the Farmers Market monthly markets
on Providence Row where the Market Traders Permit Holders bays are
proposed. This will be monitored over the coming months to determine
its effectiveness. Traders will need a valid permit from the Market
Manager and will be required to pay and display.
2.4

Several objections have been received during the consultation stages
with 4 in total (City of Durham Parish Council objected at both the
informal and formal stage).

3

Recommendation(s)
Committee is recommended to:

3.1

Endorse the proposal and proceed with the implementation of the
Providence Row, Durham – Off Street Parking Places & Parking
Charges Order. With the final decision to be made by the Corporate
Director under delegated powers.

4

Background

4.1

A request was received from the outdoor market traders and market
manager to accommodate their high sided vehicles to park on the
Saturday market day. The proposals are to set up and have a
location to unload and park from along Providence Row after the
announcement of the closure of The Sands car park.

4.2

The initial consultation exercise was undertaken with statutory
consultees from 11/04/2019 – 26/04/2019.

4.3

There was one objection received at this point from the City of
Durham Parish Council. A decision was made to progress with the
TRO (Traffic Regulation Order) and move to the formal consultation
stage.

4.4

Page 4

The proposals were advertised formally on site and in the local press
between 11th July 2019 – 1st August 2019. There were three formal
objections including a second from the City of Durham Parish Council.
There were no objections from Durham Constabulary.

5 Providence Row
Providence Row off street car park is situated near to the junction of
Freeman’s Place and approx. 100m from The Sands car park which has now
closed. The off-street car park has a capacity of approx. 20 vehicles.
The off-street car park is currently ‘Pay and Display Mon-Sat 8am-6pm’ and to
give outdoor market traders of the Saturday market parking availability there
have been proposals to amend 10 bays to ‘Market Permit Holders Only
Saturday 6am-10am’. Traders will need a valid permit from the Market
Manager and will also be required to pay and display in this restricted section.
Due to comments made by current traders and the City of Durham Parish
Council there are also bay suspensions being put in place for the Farmers
Market on Providence Row where the Market Traders Permit Holders bays
are proposed. This will be monitored over the coming months to determine its
effectiveness. Traders will need a valid permit from the Market Manager and
will also be required to pay and display.
There are also ongoing surveys of Sidegate car park, where over the last few
weeks have had spaces available on a Friday afternoon to accommodate the
Full Moon market traders and is another viable option, this will also be
monitored over the coming months.
6 Objections
6.1

Objection 1

The first objection was received from the City of Durham Parish Council during
the first initial consultation. They state that they wish to object on the basis
that other market events take place during the week and not only Saturdays,
as the indoor market clearly works throughout the week.
They allege that the new proposals are 100m further from the market than the
current one and that residents currently park on this area and it would reduce
their spaces, or they would need to move their cars before 6am on Saturdays.
Response
The proposed amendment to the restrictions is to enable the outdoor market
traders a location to park their vehicles on a Saturday morning as they are
unable to enter the multi-storey car parks due to vehicle heights.
The permits will only be available on Saturday mornings as outdoor market
traders need to fully set up and remove all stock and equipment for the
Saturday market, where the indoor market traders are able to leave their stalls
and stock in the location with minimal need for restocking daily, there are

Page 5

loading bays situated near to one of the indoor market entrances on Back
Silver Street.
The market traders will need to be issued a permit from the Market Manager
to use this section, however they will still have to pay and display during this
duration.
The proposal is the nearest available location from the market that will be
suitable to use for outdoor market traders for the duration required.
6.2

Objection 2

The second objection also comes from the City of Durham Parish Council
during the formal consultation stage.
They state they would formally like to object to the proposals again as the new
permit area is 100m further away from the market place than The Sands were.
They continue that the additional distance and time will cause further difficulty
as stalls are left unoccupied.
They explain that they have received correspondence from several outdoor
traders stating the scheme will them further difficulty. The state that market
traders require parking for the Farmers Market (every third Thursday) and for
the Full Moon Market (once a month).
They state that they wish for Market Traders to be allowed to use Fowlers
Yard on a Saturday and other market days although not to disrupt bin
collections and loading.
Response
As per the response above where Providence Row is the nearest available
location from the market that is suitable.
There are plans currently in place to make suitable arrangements for the
Farmers Market, where the Market Traders bays on Providence Row will have
bay suspensions put in place for the duration of the markets to allow Farmers
Market Traders parking availability. This will be monitored over the coming
months to determine its effectiveness. Traders will need a valid permit from
the Market Manager and will also be required to pay and display.
There are also ongoing surveys of Sidegate car park, where over the last few
weeks have had spaces available on a Friday afternoon to accommodate the
Full Moon market traders and is another viable option, this will also be
monitored over the coming months.

Page 6

Fowlers Yard was surveyed and was deemed as not suitable for vehicles to
park as the limited space along with the large bin storage and with vehicles
constantly using the location to load/unload would have a negative effect on
the productivity of the available space.
Providence Row will allow Saturday Outdoor Market and the Farmers Market
Traders available space to park as well as having the option to park in any
other off or on street car park within the city.
6.3

Objection 3

The third objector is an outdoor market trader who attends the Farmers
Marker and is objecting to the closure of The Sands carpark and proposed
Market Trader off street car parking on Providence Row. The objector states
that there is a lack of provisions for the Farmers Market which is on a specific
time and date once a month.
They continue to allege that the planned provision at Providence Row
increases the distance to walk, and an extra three minutes does not sound
much, but it feels like a long time when you are leaving your stall unattended.
The objector also states that they must leave extra time to drive to and from
this car park, also increased traffic will cause congestion. The state that the
closure of The Sands is a bad decision.
They finish their objection by stating that they will no longer be able to have a
stall at Durham Farmers market if these plans go ahead as proposed.
Response
Due to the comments received from Durham City Parish Council and Market
Traders provisions are in place to accommodate all outdoor market traders
with the introduction of the Traffic Regulation Order, and to suspend bays on
Providence Row when necessary for the Farmers Market.
There are also surveys being conducted on a weekly basis to determine how
many available outdoor on-street and off-street car places are available when
the Farmers and Full Moon markets are in place for traders to park. This
information will then be passed to the Market Manager and arrangements
made by Durham County Council’s Parking Services Manager will be made to
suspend bays or inform the Market Manager of locations of available spaces.
The proposal is the nearest available location from the market that will be
suitable to use for outdoor market traders for the duration required. The
traders do not have allocated bays at current so may have been delayed with
finding a parking space adding to the time away from their stall. The proposals
will allow quick access to an available space if they are allocated a permit

Page 7

from the Market Manager. The proposed market trader permit location on
Providence Row is closer to drive to the market.
6.4

Objection 4

The fourth objection comes from a member of St Nicholas Community Forum
Residents Association and provides their objection in relation to objector
three’s comments. The objector asks if we consider the walking time for a
person perhaps less fit or with mobility issues, who must transfer large
amounts of stock at each walk. They state that the walk would be longer than
2 minutes.
The objector requests that the department do everything possible to
encourage market traders rather than discourage them. The continue to state
that the traders are some of the last remaining independent traders the
thinking is to support the high street and different retail over chain shops.
The objector then asks what response is given to the worrying and depressing
comment that this trader (objector 3) will not be able to trade in Durham City
thus depriving the City of a well-used facility and potentially cause difficulties
to a small business.
They finish the objection with the comments that the outdoor market is more
than one day a week, what provisions do you plan to make for other days.
They also question if non market traders choose to park in the proposed bays
on Providence Row, or there are more than 10 traders on one occasion what
the backup strategy is.
Response
The proposal is the nearest available location with a suitable footway for
persons with mobility issues from the market and closer to drive to the market
place, that will be suitable for outdoor market traders for their high sided
vehicles and duration required. The traders can unload in the market place
and then use Providence Row to park their vehicle (with a valid permit and
must pay and display) so minimal trips to load and unload are not required.
Durham County Council have been working with the Market Manager to find
the best solution for the outdoor market traders, the current situation is that
they do not have any allocated bays, so using The Sands car park would
never guarantee available parking. The proposals to allocate 10 bays to the
outdoor traders will improve the possibility of parking availability and Durham
County Council have discussed the amount of required parking spaces with
the Market Manager. This will be monitored over the coming months and
alterations can be made if the demand is required.
Durham County Council are trying to do all that is possible to accommodate
outdoor market traders on the weekly Saturday market, and monthly Farmers
Page 8

market by putting in bay suspensions on Providence Row when the Sidegate
Car Park is at full capacity. In recent weeks since the closure of The Sands
carpark there has been parking availability at Sidegate car park to
accommodate the Full Moon market.
If none market traders park in the ‘Market Trader permit holders only bays’
when the restrictions are in force, then they can be subjected to a PCN
(Penalty Charge Notice). This will also be the same case if the bays get
suspended for the Farmers and Full Moon Market as none permit holders will
also be subjected to the same PCN.
6.5

Comments from Market Traders

There have also been two emails from Market Traders with queries regarding
the proposals. The first enquiry wanted clarification of how the proposals will
work and a plan to explain. They were sent over all available information and
no further responses were received.
The second enquiry wanted clarification of how they will get assigned a space
if the proposals are successful. A response was given explaining the market
trader permit area and how it will work. There was then a final email from them
stating that they wish that the Saturday outdoor market didn’t have to keep
giving way for other things that are going on in the market place and they are
trying to make a living but is very difficult as the market is getting closed all of
the time.
The comments have not been taken as objections in relation to the traffic
regulation order.
6.6

Response

The Council (and persons exercising public functions) has a duty under Section
149 of the Equality Act 2010 when exercising its functions to have regard to the
need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimization and any other
conduct that is prohibited under the Equality Act 2010; (b) advance equality of
opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it; and (c) foster good relations between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
The Council has considered its public sector equality duty. In particular, the
issues the Council has considered include the impacts upon disabled and other
less mobile people as a result of the introduction of a TRO.
Having had due regard to all relevant factors, it is not considered that the
introduction of a TRO would breach the Council’s public sector equality duty.
All issues have been considered in accordance with national law and other
material considerations. Given the limited number of spaces affected and the

Page 9

benefits obtained by ensuring that market traders have access to appropriate
parking, it is considered that the introduction of a TRO would be proportionate
and appropriate in this instance.

7 Conclusion
7.1

It is recommended that Members agree endorse the proposal and
proceed with the implementation of the Durham City – Off Street
Parking Places & Parking Charges Order 2019. With the final decision
to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers.

8 Background papers
8.1

Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File

L:\TRAFPROJ\06 REGULATION DESIGN & IMPLEMENTATION\Off Street
Car Parks\April 2019 Market
Contact:

Page 10

Peter Broxton

Tel: 03000 263986

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority
and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements.

Finance
LTP Budget.

Consultation
Is in accordance with SI:2489.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
It is considered that Equality and Diversity issues have been addressed within
the report.

Human Rights
No impact on human rights.

Crime and Disorder
This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and
improve road safety.

Staffing
Carried out by Strategic Traffic.

Accommodation
No impact.

Risk
Not Applicable.

Procurement
Operations, DCC.

Page 11

Appendix 2: Location of Proposals

Page 12

Providence Row, Durham City
Off Street Parking Places and
Parking Charges Order 2019
Highways Committee
12th September 2019

Page 13

Page 14

Location Plan – Durham City Area
County Hall

Proposal
Location

Claypath
Milburngate
Bridge

Gilesgate
Roundabout

Proposal – Providence Row

Page 15

Page 16

Providence Row Proposals
Proposed ‘Market Permit Holders
Only Sat 6am-10am’ and must
Pay and Display at machine.

Freeman’s Place

Providence Row

Durham Overview
Sidegate
Car Park

Proposed ‘Market Permit Holders
Only Sat 6am-10am’ Location

The Sands Car
Park (Closed)

Page 17

Market Place

Fowlers Yard

Page 18

Fowlers Yard Loading Area

Highways Committee

Agenda Item 5

12 September 2019
Green Lane, Gilesgate – Parking &
Waiting Restrictions ORDER 2019

Report of Corporate Management Team
Ian Thompson Corporate Director of Regeneration and Economic
Development.
Councillor Carl Marshall, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Regeneration
and Economic Development.

Electoral division(s) affected:
Belmont

1 Purpose of the Report
1.1

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to
decide in principle only which will then guide the Corporate Director
in the exercise of delegated decision making. The final decision is
therefore one for the Corporate Director, under delegated powers.

1.2

To advise Members of objections received to the consultation
concerning changes to the traffic regulation order on Green Lane,
Gilesgate.

1.3

To request that members consider the objections made during the
informal and formal consultation period.

2

Executive Summary

2.1

Within Civil parking Enforcement operational guidance, the County
Council are committed to regularly reviewing traffic regulation orders to
ensure that the restrictions held within them are relevant and
appropriate.

2.2

The County Council are proposing to introduce restrictions on:

2.3

Green Lane, Gilesgate

The TRO is to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions (double yellow
lines). The proposals were requested by local residents and the local County
Councillor in a bid to reduce obstructive parking and improve road safety.
Page 19

3

Recommendation(s)

3.1

Committee is recommended to:
Endorse the proposal in principle to proceed with the implementation of
the Green Lane, Gilesgate: Parking and Waiting Restrictions Order.
With the final decision to be made by the Corporate Director under
delegated powers.

4

Background

4.1

Several requests have been received to address ongoing obstructive
parking, visibility and safety issues along Green Lane, Gilesgate, and a
site meeting was conducted with concerned residents and the local
County Councillor.

4.2

The initial consultation exercise was undertaken with statutory
consultees and directly affected frontages in April and May 2019.

4.3

One objection was received at this point from directly affected
frontages. The proposals were supported by Durham Constabulary and
the Local County Councillors. After reviewing the feedback, a decision
was made to progress with the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) and
move to the formal consultation stage.

4.4

At this point additional requests were received from directly affected
frontages to increase the proposed ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions
(double yellow lines) on Green Lane.

4.5

Amendments were made, and the proposals were reconsulted with
statutory consultees and directly affected frontages in May 2019.
Support was received from Durham Constabulary and the Local County
Councillors.

4.6

There were no further objections received and the decision was made
to progress with the TRO and move to the formal consultation stage.

4.7

The formal notices for the proposals were advertised on site and in the
local press between 20th June 2019 – 11th July 2019. No further
objections were received during this period.

5

Green Lane, Gilesgate

Green Lane is a residential area off Sunderland Road in Gilesgate. This is a
narrow one-way road with terraced residential properties to the south east of
the road and the rest of the properties are mainly bungalows with the elderly

Page 20

and those with mobility issues. There is only one single footway to the south
east, next to the terraced properties. Most properties have no off-street parking.
The TRO is to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions (double yellow
lines). The proposals were requested by residents and the local County
Councillor in a bid to reduce obstructive parking and improve road safety.
There were reports of vehicles parking fully on the footway forcing pedestrians
and wheelchair users into the oncoming traffic, there have been cases where
elderly residents have not heard oncoming vehicles while walking in the road.
There have also been reports of large vehicles struggling to gain access due to
vehicles parking on the footway and narrowing the carriageway.
Discussions were undertaken with Durham Constabulary to get their comments
on the issues. They felt that if they sent officers to ask vehicle owners to not
park on the footway, that the issues for passing vehicles would only get worse.
Durham Constabulary fully support the proposals along with the local county
Council. There has been 1 objection and 9 supporting the proposals.
6

Objection

6.1

Objection 1

Objector 1 is a resident of Green Lane. They allege that there is no alternative
parking, is not currently a dangerous road and everyone goes slowly anyway.
6.2

Response

After meeting with residents and the County Councillor the parking situation was
deemed as obstructive parking, where in some cases vehicles were parked right
up to the walls of the properties, and wheelchair and pushchair users would not
be able to use the footway. There is no alternative footway on the opposite side
of the carriageway so the single footway leading onto Sunderland road to use
the local amenities and for the bus stop is necessary for pedestrian safety.
It was also viewed that there was not enough space for larger delivery vehicles
to pass the parked vehicles and it was observed that a van bumped onto the
small section on kerbing on the west side of the carriageway.
Obstructive parking of this nature could cause difficulties for emergency
services gaining access. The North East Ambulance Service were also in
support of the proposals.
There alternative unrestricted parking available to the north of Green Lane and
in surrounding nearby streets.

Page 21

Considering this information, the ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions should be
introduced in the interest of pedestrian and road safety.
The Council (and persons exercising public functions) has a duty under Section
149 of the Equality Act 2010 when exercising its functions to have regard to the
need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimization and any other
conduct that is prohibited under the Equality Act 2010; (b) advance equality of
opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it; and (c) foster good relations between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
The Council has considered its public sector equality duty. In particular, the
issues the Council has considered include the impacts upon disabled and other
less mobile people as a result of the introduction of a TRO.
Having had due regard to all relevant factors, it is not considered that the
introduction of a TRO would breach the Council’s public sector equality duty. All
issues have been considered in accordance with national law and other material
considerations. It is considered that the introduction of a TRO would be
proportionate and appropriate in this instance acknowledging the safety
concerns identified within this report.

7

Conclusion

7.1

It is recommended that Members agree in principle to endorse the
proposal to proceed with the implementation of the Green Lane,
Gilesgate: Waiting and Parking Restrictions Order. With the final decision
to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers.

7

Background papers

7.1

Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File:

\\duch-3900\arc2-sys2$\TRAFPROJ\06REGULATIONDESIGN&
IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Belmont,Carrville&Gilesgate\Traffic
Regulation Orders (Parking Restrictions)\2019 April
Contact:

Page 22

Peter Broxton

Tel: 03000 263986

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority
and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements.

Finance
LTP Budget.

Consultation
Is in accordance with SI:2489.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
It is considered that these issues are fully dealt with in the report.

Human Rights
No impact on human rights.

Crime and Disorder
This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and
improve road safety.

Staffing
Carried out by Strategic Traffic.

Accommodation
No impact.

Risk
Not Applicable.

Procurement
Operations, DCC.

Page 23

Appendix 2: Location of Proposals

Page 24

Green Lane, Gilesgate Parking and
Waiting Order 2019
Highways Committee
12th September 2019

Page 25

Page 26

Location Plan – Green Lane, Gilesgate Area

Proposal – Green Lane, Gilesgate

Page 27

Page 28

Proposal – Green Lane, Gilesgate
No Alternative footway for
pedestrians to use
Vehicles parking on footway and
blocking pedestrian access.

Green Lane

Proposals – Green Lane, Gilesgate

Vehicles parking on footway and
blocking pedestrian access.

Green Lane

No Alternative footway for
pedestrians to use

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Highways Committee
12 September 2019
Shotley Bridge – Parking &
Waiting Restrictions ORDER
2019

Report of Corporate Management Team
Ian Thompson Corporate Director of Regeneration and Economic
Development.
Councillor Carl Marshall, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Regeneration
and Economic Development.

Electoral division(s) affected:
Benfieldside

1 Purpose of the Report
1.1

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to
decide in principle only which will then guide the Corporate Director
in the exercise of delegated decision making. The final decision is
therefore one for the Corporate Director, under delegated powers.

1.2

To advise Members of objections received to the consultation
concerning changes to the traffic regulation order in Shotley Bridge.

1.3

To request that members consider the objections made during the
informal and formal consultation period.

2

Executive Summary

2.1

Within Civil parking Enforcement operational guidance, the County
Council are committed to regularly reviewing traffic regulation orders to
ensure that the restrictions held within them are relevant and
appropriate.

2.2

The County Council are proposing to introduce restrictions on:

Page 31

2.3

Benfieldside Road, Shotley Bridge

The TRO is to introduce ‘School Keep Clear’ markings on the opposite side to
the existing ‘School Keep Clear’ markings near to Shotley Bridge Infants
School. The proposals were requested by the head teacher, parents of the
school children and other members of staff from the school, along with the local
County Councillor in a bid to reduce obstructive parking and improve road safety
during school drop off and pick up times.
2.4

Church Bank, Shotley Bridge

The TRO is to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions both sides of Church
Bank. The proposals were requested by local residents along with the local
County Councillor in a bid to reduce obstructive parking and improve road safety
on the section of road.

3

Recommendation(s)

3.1

Committee is recommended to:
Endorse the proposal in principle to proceed with the implementation of
the Shotley Bridge: Parking and Waiting Restrictions Order. With the
final decision to be made by the Corporate Director under delegated
powers.

4

Background

4.1

Request were received to address ongoing obstructive parking, visibility
and safety issues in Shotley Bridge, a site meeting was conducted with
concerned residents, the local head teacher, staff and the local County
Councillor.

4.2

The initial consultation exercise was undertaken with statutory
consultees and directly affected frontages in May and June 2019.

4.3

One property objected at this point with regards to the proposals on
Benfieldside Road. The proposals were supported by Durham
Constabulary and the Local County Councillors. After reviewing the
feedback, a decision was made to progress with the Traffic Regulation
Order (TRO) and move to the formal consultation stage.

4.4

The formal notices for the proposals were advertised on site and in the
local press between 8th August 2019 – 29th August 2019. No further
objections were received during this period.

Page 32

5

Benfieldside Road

Benfieldside Road is a heavily trafficked road leading to residential properties,
maintains a bus route, has two schools, a church and links the A691 to the
B6310. Shotley bridge Infants School is situated along Benfieldside Road where
there is a steep elevation and the road has bends which reduce visibility for
road users. Properties opposite to the school all have off street parking.
The TRO is to introduce ‘School Keep Clear’ markings (Mon-Fri 8am-9am &
3pm-4pm) on the opposite side to the existing ‘School Keep Clear’ markings
(Mon-Fri 8am-6pm) near to Shotley Bridge Infants School. The proposals were
requested by the head teacher, parents of the school children and other
members of staff from the school, along with the local County Councillor in a
bid to reduce obstructive parking and improve road safety during school drop
off and pick up times.
There were reports of vehicles parking on the bend opposite to the school which
reduces pedestrian’s visibility when trying to cross the road to access the
school, other reports suggest vehicles parking in this location have caused
several near misses for overtaking vehicles during school pick up and drop off
times. Vehicles parking in this area also stop residents accessing or leaving
their property during this time and causes visibility issues for those trying to exit
their driveway.
Durham Constabulary fully support the proposals along with the local county
Council. There has been 1 objection for the proposals.
6

Church Bank

Church Bank is a narrow section of road leading from Benfieldside Road to
Burnmill Bank/ Green Road. There have been requests from residents who
live on the west end of Church Bank to introduce restrictions to help with
reports of obstructive parking and visibility issues on the narrow tight bend
near their properties.
The TRO is to introduce ‘no waiting at any time’ restrictions on both sides of
Church Bank. The proposals were requested by residents along with the local
County Councillor in a bid to reduce obstructive parking and improve road safety
on the section of road.
Durham Constabulary support the proposals along with the local county
Council. There have been no objections for the proposals.

Page 33

7

Benfieldside Road Objection

7.1

Objection 1

Objector 1 is made up of a husband and wife who are residents of Benfieldside
road and live opposite to Shotley Bridge Infants School. They object to the
duration of the restrictions as the School Keep Clear marking will be enforced
throughout the year, even when the school is closed during the summer
holidays.
They requested that Durham County Council introduce flashing light to the
‘school keep clears’ to show when they are enforceable and to turn them off
outside of term time.
They state that they have disabled mother who visits and that they will need to
move her car twice a day to adhere to the restrictions. They allege that this is
not a safety problem outside of school term time.
Finally, they allege that the restrictions may have an impact on any future sales
of their property.
7.2

Response

After meeting with the head teacher, staff members and the County Councillor
the parking situation was deemed as obstructive parking, and that visibility is
not suitable for pedestrians to cross. The restrictions have been requested by
the school as there have been numerous reports of safety issues with children
having near misses due to parked vehicles on Benfieldside Road bank during
school times. It is also a hazard for overtaking vehicles when cars are parked
on this side of the carriageway.
Due to the government guidelines and legislation with this type of restriction
the council are unable to state on the signage that it will only be enforceable in
school term time, as this is a legal order which is penalised with a PCN
(Penalty Charge Notice) and if someone receives a PCN could appeal and
take it to a tribunal unless specific dates/times were represented on the sign.
The dates of the school holidays will change year on year so it is just
something that cannot be used in this circumstance. Flashing lights are also
not within the legislation to identify when a restriction is in place or not.
Vehicles parking in this location between the school pick up and drop off times
are causing visibility issues and therefore endanger pedestrians. The
proposals have been supported by Durham Constabulary from a road safety
point of view.

Page 34

The proposals have been kept to a shorter duration to give residents
opportunity to take deliveries, load and unload and park if necessary, outside
of the restricted timings. The existing school keep clears directly outside the
school are (Mon-Fri 8am-6pm) and the proposed are of 1 hour in the morning
and 1 hour in the afternoon (Mon-Fri 8am-9am & 3pm-4pm).
The homeowners will have a clearer visibility and accessibility to gain access
to your drive during the 2 hours in the day when they are enforceable. The
restrictions should also naturally keep the area clear of parked vehicles
outside of the restricted times which should also be a benefit.
The elevated bend and bank are a safety concern due to the lack of visibility
even outside of school times and have received support from Durham
Constabulary and the local County Councillors with the introduction of these
restrictions.
There alternative unrestricted parking available in the surrounding area for
visitor parking and outside of the restricted timings.
Considering this information, the ‘School Keep Clear’ markings should be
introduced in the interest of pedestrian and road safety.

8

Public Sector Equality Duty

The Council (and persons exercising public functions) has a duty under Section
149 of the Equality Act 2010 when exercising its functions to have regard to the
need to (a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimization and any other
conduct that is prohibited under the Equality Act 2010; (b) advance equality of
opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it; and (c) foster good relations between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.
The Council has considered its public sector equality duty. In particular, the
issues the Council has considered include the impacts upon disabled and other
less mobile people as a result of the introduction of a TRO.
Having had due regard to all relevant factors, it is not considered that the
introduction of a TRO would breach the Council’s public sector equality duty. All
issues have been considered in accordance with national law and other material
considerations. It is considered that the introduction of a TRO would be
proportionate and appropriate in this instance acknowledging the safety
concerns identified within this report.

Page 35

9

Conclusion

9.1

It is recommended that Members agree in principle to endorse the
proposal to proceed with the implementation of the Shotley Bridge:
Waiting and Parking Restrictions Order. With the final decision to be
made by the Corporate Director under delegated powers.

10

Background papers

10.1 Correspondence and documentation in Traffic Office File:
L:\TRAFPROJ\06
REGULATION
DESIGN
&
IMPLEMENTATION\Settlement\Blackhill and Shotley Bridge\Traffic Regulation
Orders (Parking Restrictions)\May 2019
Contact:

Page 36

Peter Broxton

Tel: 03000 263986

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
All orders have been advertised by the County Council as highway authority
and will be made in accordance with legislative requirements.

Finance
LTP Budget.

Consultation
Is in accordance with SI:2489.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
This is considered in full within the report.

Human Rights
No impact on human rights.

Crime and Disorder
This TRO will allow effective management of traffic to reduce congestion and
improve road safety.

Staffing
Carried out by Strategic Traffic.

Accommodation
No impact.

Risk
Not Applicable.

Procurement
Operations, DCC.

Page 37

Appendix 2: Location of Proposals

Page 38

Shotley Bridge Parking and Waiting
Order 2019
Highways Committee
12th September 2019

Page 39

Page 40

Location Plan – Shotley Bridge Area

Proposal – Benfieldside Road

Page 41

Page 42

Proposal – Benfieldside Road
One Objection

Objector Address

Benfieldside Road

Location of proposed
‘School Keep Clears’

Proposals – Church Bank
No Objection

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

